Chester County Planning Commission Minutes

December 20, 2022

1. Call to Order – Vice Chairman Smith called meeting to order.

Quorum Established: Vice Chairman Smith, Commissioners Joe Howell, Azzie Hill, Marvin Grant, Nancy Walley, and with Commissioner Carolyn Williams and Chairman Raines absent with previous notification. **Staff**: Mike Levister, Jaime Chappell, and County Attorney Joanie Winters.

- 2. Approval of Agenda Vice Chairman Smith motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell. Vote 5-0 to approve.
- 3. Approval of Minutes from November 15, 2022, Meeting

 <u>Commissioner Grant motioned to approve</u>, second by Vice Chairman Smith. Vote 5-0 to Approve.
- 4. New Business
- A. <u>CCMA22-24</u> Jeremiah Kibbey requests Tax Map # 101-00-00-099-000 at 2115 Great Falls Hwy., Blackstock, SC 29014 to be rezoned from Rural 2 (R2) to General Residential District (RG-2).

Jeremiah John Kibbey stated he lives at 2115 Great Falls Hwy., Blackstock, SC 29014 and his request is to rezone his property from R2 to RG-2 to allow another residence on the property which is just under 4 acres. His parents are getting older and having health problems and need his assistance.

Vice Chairman Smith asked if anyone had any questions. There were none. <u>Vice Chairman Smith</u> motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell. <u>Vote 5-0 Approved</u>.

B. <u>CCLDV22-18</u> Croom Hunter request a Street Access Easement for Tax Map # 144-00-00-008-000 located on Wylies Mill Rd., Edgemoor, SC 29712.

Croom Hunter stated he was an attorney in Chester and is representing Tommy Barnes and Chase Barnes. Mr. Hunter said Mr. Tommy Barnes owns the property and he already has an existing private rural drive to access the back portion of the property. Mr. Barnes would like to give 2.634 acres to his son Chase, which you can see at the bottom of the plat. The request is to extend the existing 50 ft drive to the new parcel being given to his son Chase.

Vice Chairman Smith asked if anyone had any questions.

Commission Grant asked Mr. Hunter was this just an extension of the existing easement?

Mr. Hunter answered yes.

Commissioner Hill motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell. Vote 5-0 Approved.

- C. CCLDV22-19 Katrena Dunifer requests a Street Access Easement for Tax Map #076-00-006-000 located at 810 Colony Rd., Chester, SC 29706. Vice Chairman Smith motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Grant. Vote 5-0 Approved.
- D. <u>CCLDV22-20</u> Tina Hardin requests a Street Access Easement for Tax Map #133-00-00-305-000 located at Chestnut Lane, Edgemoor, SC 29712.

Tina Hardin stated she lives at 1618 Stonehill Place, Rock Hill, SC 29730. She stated the 9 ½ acres that she and her dad purchased in 2000 was so she, her dad, and her children could live there. Since her dad has passed, she would like to divide the land up into 4 parcels to give to her children before something happens to her. She needs to extend the easement to divide up the property.

Vice Chairman Smith asked if anyone had any questions. There were none. <u>Vice Chairman Smith</u> motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell. Vote 5-0 Approved.

E. <u>CCLDV22-21</u> Letha Ann Holt Guerra requests a Street Access Easement for Tax Map # 077-00-00-008-000 located at 1642 McK Dr., Chester, SC 29706.

Bill Marion stated he was Ms. Guerra's attorney, and his office is at 124 Gadsden St., Chester, SC 29706. Ms. Guerra wishes to create a new tax map number for her son, and she wishes to maintain an access easement along the gravel drive leading to other property of her own, and to do that, we need the gravel drive approved as an access easement.

Vice Chairman Smith asked if anyone had any questions. There were none. <u>Commissioner Howell</u> motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Grant. Vote 5-0 Approved.

F. <u>CCLDV22-22</u> Robert H. Owens requests a Street Access Easement for Tax Map # 050-00-00-051-000 located at 1927 Baton Rouge Rd., Chester, SC 29706.

Bill Marion stated he was Mr. Owens's attorney, and his office is at 124 Gadsden St., Chester, SC 29706. Mr. Owens has two pieces of private property one of which is technically landlocked, and have two separate tax map numbers. He wishes to keep them that way in case he ever wants to sell one but he cannot get to the back piece because technically there is no easement so he's asking to establish a right of way as shown on the plat to have easement to his backlot.

Vice Chairman Smith asked if anyone had any questions. There were none. <u>Commissioner Hill motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Smith. Vote 5-0 Approved.</u>

G. CCMA22-25 Luck Companies request a portion (7.8 acres) of Tax Map # 089-00-00-005-000 at 1207 Lancaster Hwy., Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General Commercial District (GC).

Ben Thompson stated he was with Luck Company and is here on behalf of the company. He understands I've been before you all previously, back in 2020. So, I am going to somewhat abbreviate what would be a typical presentation and kind of the full breadth of who we are as a company. Try to get a little more into details and in particular denote. What has changed from the last application to the current proposal that's in front of you. Would love to answer any questions you may have at the end. Also, I'm sure there will be some comments made during the public hearing. That would love the opportunity as questions arise from those to be able to answer and provide as much clarity and transparency on this project as possible. So, in 2020, we came before you we had a project that was exclusively comprised of a Creek Restoration Project, a quarry portion of the property, so a heavy industrial zoning request on the back of a property, and then a frontage request for light industrial which would be economic development. So, we stood before you, and it was COVID Time. Education ability was a little lower on our side, and we received a negative vote from this council and certainly understand why. And so, we decided, well, we need to get out of this period, do more work in the community, listen a lot more. So, in doing so, we've been present over the past two years. We do pride ourselves in relationships and getting out but received a lot of feedback during those times. That feedback enabled us to come back to you with an application that has some similar parts, but many different parts as well. So as a company, yeah, one of the things that near and dear to our heart is the people and relationships. And so, when you're doing a project like this, there's a lot of anxiety that pops up in communities. There's a lot of fear of the unknown, there's also a lot of oversight, and conversations and studies that you must engage in. All that goes back to learning and as you're learning we start to see how the projects can change. So, with a lot of that good feedback, we have a project now that has a request to approve an industrial zoning. So, you're one distinction here is you're not approving as a quarry. You're approving the zoning. The quarry is another step that we do need to take. So, we're in front of you requesting an ID-3 zoning on a portion of property and I have maps that will depict this. We are also requesting that you down zone a piece of property so there's an industrial property attached to our application that we're requesting changes from its current state of ID-1 to an agricultural state. We also have attached to our application, a recreation area, so a trail component, as well. As a 50 plus acre commercial business park and retail center. In addition to that, we have conditions wrapping all of this. So, the conditions speak to either direct concern that individuals may have and those are typical concerns that we hear. But it also does some things like make commitments to within our project there's a government give space. So, we've set aside 15.8 acres that could grow as the county grows and has a need for additional service areas, satellite office, what have you, that area would be a donation to the county. We also have a component that is a community fund. So, I'm sure lots of people here have seen our name be present in the community. That is something that as part of our mission of igniting human potential that we feel is very important. But we also recognize that there might be some voices saying, well, you're just doing certain things to win favor to gain a permit. So, to combat that, we've gone in and committed ourselves to an ongoing give to the community. That is completely separate from the foundation we have as a company that many local nonprofits have already participated with. So, with the plan that you see in front of you, and I'm hoping it's a little more legible on your personal screens. But we must get into specifics 1.39 miles of trail on site, the 15-point acres I mentioned as the donation we are keeping greater than 40% of open space on our project in total. We have 200, a minimum of 291,000 feet, and that's on the western portion of the property. So, where you see buildings in orange that is the general commercial area and the business park component. We recognize there's a void in the county of smaller square footage buildings, so there's lots of land that could absorb a million square foot type building. What there is not

is inventory that allows the existing business within the county to grow or the follow along businesses to house themselves in the county. We also have if you'll look at the top north of the CSX rail line. That's a 90-acre piece of property, that property is currently zoned industrial, primary access to that property is through a residential neighborhood. And so, we have proposed to take that property down zone it from industrial to agriculture, and we have made a commitment and our conditions to work to partner with the schools for ag education, whether that be the school program itself or partnering with FFA. But we see that as an opportunity to get kids to the site. Also, an opportunity for a revenue stream for those programs to be created. That could fund future scholarships or reinvest in the schools themselves. So, this is the retail and business center portion, the defining line, so on the bottom you'll see Hwy 9. As you run into north south orientation, you'll see a blue line there. That's Rocky Creek. So, this is everything west of Rocky Creek. The purple area is the denoted space for the government donation. The yellow buildings in the back of that property are our larger flex space buildings. So anywhere from 20,000 to 80,000 square foot buildings and then the front edge would be truer to retail office competitor. Again, this is the property on the north side you can see it's currently zoned industrial and for a fuller orientation, if you look to the right hand of the map there that is Boise Cascade. So just from a general orientation, we are immediately adjacent to Boise Cascade on Highway 9, one property to the west of it. And I can pause if there are any questions at this point or I'm happy to keep going. So, as you're running through the overall project, and I've stated the numbers on the right-hand side, the quarry portion of the property has become fully vetted as well. So, we spent about two and a half years in Chester County talking to people looking at various properties of land. A lot of the spring's property, a lot of farms. Rock is not pervasive. So, while you may hit rock, it may not be the quality, or you may see an outcropping of rock and you go 20 feet to the right of it and you don't hit a point of refusal as you put a drill in the ground. So, this is not a type of use or a type of geologic body that you just say, well, why don't you go two miles down the road. After looking at about 14 properties. And we were in conversation with Karlisa Parker, and she brought to our attention this property that was on the economic development list. So, we liked a couple of things about it. We're always looking to be on the main road. We do not want trucks on secondary roads unless they are going to a project. It had the access to the I-77 interchange, which we liked. We recognize that part of the comp plan. This was the area to focus industrial development as denoted in the comp plan. And then we also recognized, and this is in a stronger, more global state. This was a linchpin area for the state of South Carolina. So, now we have worked on this site, we have gone through all state permitting, we did so to ensure that the science was sound. The State really looks at it from two perspectives does science work and is this group a good steward of property? Our reputation covers that piece well. And, and we can talk about that from an environmental Award standpoint, or we can talk about it from a safety standpoint or just a culture as a company standpoint. But in doing so, we reviewed this piece of property for roughly two years. Many experts on the site we heard lots of statements about well, maybe there's threatened and endangered species on the property. Well, that's part of the study that the state requires. Maybe there's cultural resource issues with the site. Well, that's a study that the state requires. So, from an erosion and sediment control from a groundwater overview and hydro geologic analysis. All these studies have been complete and approved by the state. What we didn't do, was take into account the county as a whole. So, where we were trying to address certain things like, well, there, there needs to be trails and things like that. There were a lot more statements than that. Our schools need to get better, and our retail needs to be upgraded. We don't have spaces for existing companies to grow within the county. So that's where we really took the initiative to move further to the west. Grab that piece of property and start to do an

appropriate design for that. We also heard as we went through this from many in the Craigbrow neighborhood of, we need more buffer, it's too close. So, for us, and we have examples we can show. That neighborhood is one of the furthest neighborhoods away from any operation we have, and our footprint is running from Maryland to Georgia. So, we felt very comfortable with that. That does not alleviate the concern for those individuals. That's where we really focused on, well, I wonder if people even know that there's a property that can be developed right now and send industrial traffic through their neighborhood. So, in grabbing that, we felt like that was a good fit to bridge that with the schools and provide additional buffer for the neighborhood itself. These are also applications where when you're talking to the state, you're sitting there and laying out monitor wells. All the pieces and parts that would create anxiety or concern for individuals are addressed in those applications. Now we've doubled down on that, while those are state agreements, and certainly valid at the state level. We have also included those and many more in in this request proposal before you. So, as you're in and you probably got blurry eyed reading that, but we have about seven or eight pages that are just strictly conditions, everything from hours of operation to concern about noise and so we're placing decibel levels on things. As a as an example that we put in here we will not exceed 80 decibel levels at the property line. We received feedback just recently from some folks saying 80 seems okay but at nighttime that seems pretty loud. So just to go on record and then this would be addressed at the Zoning Board of Appeals. But we would reduce the nighttime different than the language you have to 70 decibel levels. And so those are the kinds of things when people engage and talk to you. We now can kind of have a working dialogue and make the applications even better. So, this is the zoning plan that would be the vote for this evening. So, you'll see in the hatched area that is a request to zone two ID-3. So, we were very purposeful to try to pull the ID-3 which is the heavier zoning off the Hwy 9 corridor and leave ID-1 on the front to ensure lower intensity uses. We also went into ID-3, and we said the ID-3 zoning category has a lot of allowed uses that may create concern for people. So, we went into ID-3, and we struck through most of the uses that are in ID-3. Really the only reason we want ID-3 is because that's the category to move forward with a special exception for a quarry. So that area and again, greater than 40% of that property will be open space. And from a quarry standpoint, for the first 20 years, we will only be operating in about 30 acres of a of a 260-acre portion of property there. The ID-1 is the darker purple on the property. And it's got kind of a linear shape to it. So, what that capture is the frontage in front of ID-3 and wraps behind it as it crosses the river for the business park component. The other zoning is GC which is General Commercial. That'll be for the retail office component, as well as the government use component that falls within the GC category. So, I'm not going to try to speak through this. But simply want to call out that every portion of the project like this is about engaging with stakeholders, whether that's community whether that's politicians, whether that's regulators and trying to bridge all those desires to make the healthiest project possible. You'll see that we are at the tail end here. We have all our necessary permits. This is really a zoning exercise that we need to undergo. While the state may say it's okay. What we really need at this point is the County to bless it. So, a lot of people in and I don't want to be redundant here, but we have been very present and the community. That is very genuine to us. It's an authentic thing that will persist. So, one of the best compliments that I've received since being in Chester is that since you guys showed up and started participating, we've seen other businesses start to engage. Whether that's given money, whether that's time all those things are hugely valuable to communities. So, when you're talking about kind of just the general premise of sustainability, couple things are important. You got to have services, you got to have supply of materials. You got to have the oversight to be able to manage appropriately. And you got to have leadership.

I believe the project that we have before you today address all those things, and we want to remain with that. But we have further conditioned ourselves that there will be a community engagement group that's attached to our project. So, on a quarterly basis, we've committed that a community citizen group will meet with us, during that time, we will share where we are, what's going on, where's our planning. It will also be an opportunity for feedback. So, if there's any ongoing concern, we can hear it and address it. That grows relationships and in addition to that, we've also said that we're going to take a percentage of net revenue and that is going to be appropriated to community groups. So, this is a way to make sure that we are pushing our goodwill out in the community as we're receiving. And we really do operate in this space where there's a belief and rising tide raises all ships. And so, as Chester grows and as Chester improves and its schools get strong, all that benefits our business and our community members that are here. In this just restate so in our conditions, you'll see things addressing as well. You'll see sound, you'll see concerned about blasts, you'll see things about dust, and you'll see things about truck traffic. SCDOT has looked at this level of service does not change on Highway 9. Also, when you have a local source here on the main road and ensures that the product is not traveling from the north coming down secondary roads, longer miles. The things we haven't talked about here today are things like reclamation plans, investment, jobs, glad to talk about all those. With reclamation. We do have a reclamation plan on file with the state. We are not a group that at in the life puts a fence around something and just lets it be abandoned. This is a great value in other communities. We've done parks, we've done water reservoirs. We did a project in Fairfax County, Virginia not too long ago, where the development community there has an issue due to natural topography, no site ever balances there's always an excess of material. And so, we received clean fill dirt in one of our quarries now, and ultimately that will have a next generation life use. It's hard to contemplate what 50 plus years from now will be the right use for this site. But there is no default of we can just go do something now. All of those are community conversations and would necessitate the need for another zoning conversation. So again, our ask is that you concur with the state of South Carolina, SCDOT, DHEC, DNR, US Fish and Wildlife. This does meet the comprehensive plans criteria. We've scoured that and looked at that information. And by and large there is a community voice stayed in support for this. I'm going to shut it down there be respectful of time that would like to answer any questions you might have.

Commission Howell asked if the business park that you proposed, will that be limited to the same decimals to the quarry would be limited to?

Mr. Thompson stated yes and actually it's from a US standpoint predominantly enclosed. So yes, it would be.

Commissioner Grant asked how long do you estimate this will be quarry?

Mr. Thompson stated so lifespan of quarries are deposit dependent and market dependent. So, the larger market gets and the more demand the more stone goes up quicker. I would say in our estimation, this is somewhere between a 50- and 70-year quarry. That's pretty wide span that's 20 years span. But the energy that is coming north to south along the I- 77 corridor, and the so Chester's got a phenomenal location. It does have an inventory of land and it's got a strong work base. So, I think opportunities are going to continue to come and we want to be a part of that. So, I would say it's reasonable to think 50-year mark.

Commission Grant stated he had an opportunity to visit the quarry in VA, so how long has that one been in operation?

Mr. Thompson stated that one's a larger operation. So had more acreage because when you develop a floor you have to stair step down. So ultimately, depending on size you run out of space at the bottom. That one has been there since 1932.

Commissioner Grant asked when would you anticipate putting the trails in. Take into account that all of this is approved, and you get the exception permit. How long before would you start saying we have boots on the ground or shovel in the dirt?

Mr. Thompson stated so from a site work standpoint, we would need to coordinate with county planning office and building. It takes about six to eight months to prep the site to be able to start to remove material for sale. There is a requirement associated with this site that we have to put in monitor wells, and this has become more of a routine attachment to every mine permit in the state. So, we would monitor those wells for a year period of time, create a baseline. And so, it's reasonable to say that from approval the earliest would be a year's timeframe, more than likely it would be in that year to 18 months. So, in year terms it would be 2025 would be a good benchmark.

Commissioner Grant stated all that you are going to give to the County, and you know, turn the deeds over and all that kind of stuff. What's holding you? Is there an official agreement between you and the County that will be made?

Mr. Thompson stated that is a great question. There's no current official agreement. However, when you attach to zoning conditions like this, and Joanie can speak to this as well. When you attach it becomes legally binding. So, our zoning would be approved with these conditions attached.

Commission Grant asked that these conditions are the ones you spelled out yourself?

Mr. Thompson answered yes.

County Attorney Winters stated that would be my question because you provided this commission with written documents of special exception conditions and zoning conditions. So, you're saying that if this is approved, this would be part of that approval?

Mr. Thompson answered yes and the difference to that would be the conditions attached to the special exception. So, the more quarry uses specific, those would be attached upon approval of the special exception. The ones for the zoning would be attached per the approval of zoning.

County Attorney Winters stated that the zoning conditions are a three-page document, and the commission has that attached to the application. If the Commission decides to approve, it would be contingent on these conditions being a part of the approval.

Commission Grant stated that he was privileged enough to go see the VA quarry. From what I saw, you were in middle of a neighborhood with \$700,000 to \$800,000 houses. A couple of million-dollar houses on the very end. And the other thing that impressed me was, is that you washed the truck wheels before hitting the road. Is that something you would intend to put here to?

Mr. Thompson stated absolutely. So much of what we do, whether it's community or on-site practice is about our brand. And so, our brand means a couple of different things. Our brand means the nicer our sites are and the healthier work environments we have, the more recruitment we can have of individuals to work force and retain them. But it's also about growth. So, you know we permitted a site and just from a South Carolina standpoint, permitted a site in Spartanburg we have a site and an additional permit in Kershaw County, we permitted the site in Fairfield. If we are not responsible citizens and we are not in good favor with communities and doing everything to the best of our abilities. That word is going to travel pretty quick. And Facebook's an easy avenue and Twitter's an easy avenue. The next county we go to if we're not responsible and thought well of, that's going to impact our ability to grow. And so, there is a selfish component to doing everything the right way also.

Vice Chairman Smith asked a question about the permits and applications with DHEC and other state agencies. When you first submitted those, when was that and are you planning on submitting them again, what is the time difference, and are there any time stipulations associated with that?

Mr. Thompson stated we came before you all I believe it was 2020. About four months prior to that we received our approvals from DHEC for the mine permit. We do not need to revisit that unless there is some modification or dramatic change. It's considered a valid permit and it just awaits your blessing on land use. Those permits are 99-hundred-year permits. That is not indicative of how long people expect to mine. That's just the 10 year of the permit itself. And it is one of many.

Vice Chairman Smith stated he had another question if you remember the hearing in 2020. The topic came up of the noise level, the decibel levels, and about the crusher right in 24 hours. What's the status on that? I mean, I know you say we're going to lower to 70 but as at shutting down the crusher at certain times.

Mr. Thompson stated when people are at a site, the primary noise creator is the primary crusher. So, we do a couple of things outside of the hour's operation, which I'll get to. So, we use topography for that. So, we put the crusher down in the pit as we're going, which is able to use the topography as a noise abatement opportunity. Then you have berms that are vegetated and so that's one component and distance helps with sound. We have hours of operation that say the primary crusher will not run at nights and on the decibel levels. What we've said is that will be measured at the property line. And we've written a condition for 80, which is just a blanket day or night. And what I'm saying that we will amend it to is 80 during the daytime, 70 at nighttime.

Commission Howell stated that what you are saying is that you will be quieter than a train going through there. You will be a quiet neighbor.

Mr. Thompson stated Yes. So, we also did in, and this isn't we have boards that we can show this to, but we did do a fair amount of noise readings. And what we did was travel around the site and take ambient level noise readings, for you know, obviously we're not there operating. And then we took it to similar distances at our operating sites and took noise readings. And it did demonstrate that the ambient noise they're not with the train running just standard ambient noise is higher than our decibel readings that are our operating locations. Yes, I do understand there are some by right uses on Highway 9 that are operating nighttime hours. And there is noise and so I do get the concern about noise. I just don't want it to be played that we are a major contributor to that. And for those that have been to our sites. You can see how the berms changed things and you can see how distance alleviate sound.

Commissioner Grant asked how deep is the quarry in VA?

Mr. Thompson stated the one in Goochland is 350 feet and actually in its kind of far, but you can see some pictures over here and this speaks to both depth and in relationship to water. But the one on the top there is in downtown Richmond. The distance between the water and the edge of the pit at the narrow spot is around 75 feet and that one's 350 feet below the James River, which is the primary water body in Virginia, inland water body.

Vice Chairman Smith asked if there were any plans for transporting rock via rail?

Mr. Thompson stated No, we've reserved that right. But this site is predicated on local supply. The rails are tricky and, in many times, more costly than you would imagine. We don't envision in any kind of any near-term fashion, that would be a component use of this property. But we do fully recognize that L&C rail sitting right there as well as the CSX mainline. So, if there is an opportunity, we'd like the opportunity to have that conversation. I can tell you one thing from our design. So, we have been thoughtful. You'll see a berm stretching along the back of our property. One of the thoughts of that berm is that if you were to do a spur that you bring it inside of that berm so that the spur sits between the berm and any offsite properties.

Vice Chairman Smith asked how similar the Kershaw plant is compared to the one in Chester.

Mr. Thompson stated my smile is because the plant manager for the commercial operations is here and I'm getting ready to speak a little poorly about it. So, we acquired that site. And Tim done a phenomenal job of bringing it up to our standard, but it's much harder to, it's a lot easier to make something your standard when you're starting from scratch. So, when we acquired that site, it didn't have indoor plumbing, didn't have electrical permits on most of the buildings. They're just it was kind of a duct tape and pretty poorly run operation, especially to our standards and so we progressively been working to bring it up. Things like it's got a dirt road access to the site. When we build our own operations and it's a condition and they're you know, we're paving the first 3000 feet driveway into the operation has to ensure there's no dust escape that comes out. Dust suppression in and of itself. You're having to modify things to create dust suppression on the Kershaw site, whereas when you're building from scratch, you're employing all those tactics into all of the initial setup. So, and conditions like that are within your document as well. So, I guess short answer, it will be our standard, but it is not our standard now.

Vice Chairman Smith stated he has one last question. Right off the bat, like within the first couple of years. How many jobs total do you envision?

Mr. Thompson stated Yeah, So, jobs are in a couple different categories. So direct to the plant itself, the quarry. That's going to be somewhere between initially 15 to 20. That likely ramps up by about year 12, to 15 to 25. Where most of the numbers come from, is on the trucking side. We purposely make a choice not to employ our own trucking. What we feel that does is if you in our community, and you start to offer a bunch of trucking jobs, you're displacing existing trucking that's in the community. So, our process is to work with those groups. Allow somebody that owns one truck to grow to three trucks or a fleet of 10 to become 20. Typically, there's about 50 to 70, haulers, truck jobs. Those are not direct employees. Those are contractors. On the business park side that's a little more speculative. That could be somebody like a distribution group that comes in that has 350 jobs or could become piecemeal and be you know 20 jobs per 10,000 feet as it goes. These are good jobs. And glad to talk about our benefits and our packages and all that if you be interested.

Vice Chairman Smith asked if any other Commissioners have questions for Mr. Thompson?

Commissioner Walley asked if they would start in Chester County for the trucking jobs or do you have to go outside the county? How do you determine those jobs?

Mr. Thompson stated so there is always, and it doesn't just stop in the trucking competitive. There's always preference for the local. So, it goes back to that notion of you support local support to you. Yes, and we have done research on the trucking there is a good trucking base here. The other component that I didn't mention, and I thought you were going to go somewhere else with your question, but when you have contract haulers, it's a lot easier to dictate expectations to contract haulers. And that's not to say if, if they were our associates, they'd be doing anything differently, but you can give a warning. And anytime a vehicle leaves our site, it doesn't matter whose name on the door. It's going to be tied to us. And so that's the kind of rigor and expectation that we attach to it. And so, we are explicit down to giving the exact directions. People that haul for us they have an app on their phone. That app allows us to see that they are taking the route. It also allows us to communicate with the customer. When exactly they can expect receipt and the customer also has visibility to that. So, they can say the truck is 10 miles away and I need to get to my house for my driveway.

Mr. Howell asked if the substandard trucks, they wouldn't be allowed to haul your stone?

Mr. Thompson stated Yes, we do have standards that they meet now if they don't meet that, we absolutely work with people to whether it's getting them the right insurance and walking them through that process or ensuring that the inspections are done on their truck to bring it up to the right quality. There is an expectation that they are environmentally doing the right thing, doing the right thing from a safety standpoint, and they are legally responsible. So, all of that while they might be independent. That's where I say all of it ultimately kind of falls under our umbrella. And so, we're very attended to that.

Vice Chairman Smith stated we would take a ten-minute break and then start with the public comments.

Vice Chairman Smith stated to the public comment section, and we have a list here where we've had folks sign up to speak. I just want to remind everybody, there's a three-minute time limit. And we're going to keep a close watch on that because we do have several speakers. We're not trying to stay up here all night. After the comment section, we're going to give Mr. Thompson 10 minutes for rebuttal. With that being said, I'm going to go ahead and move forward and call up the names of people who sign up in order. And the first one on the list is Brandon Lindsey. Please come forward to the microphone. And this is for every speaker, state your name and your address and after you do that, you'll have three minutes to speak.

Brandon Lindsay stated he lives at 10630 Sweet Haven Lane, Harrisburg North Carolina. I'm here representing Hoopaugh Grading Company tonight. Hoopaugh Grading is a large general site development contractor. We've been doing projects in this community since 1953. We have 725 team members representing 725 families, many of which reside in Chester County. We're here tonight to voice our support of Luck. Our support of Chester County and our support have continued emphasis on responsible growth. You guys have been successful in that over the years, and we too are in support of that responsible growth. In fact, we have 725 families that are absolutely dependent on that responsible grid. We've been blessed to have been part of some very significant projects that this county has had over the last several years and we're excited to be part of many more in the future. Those projects even responsible growth require significant investment in infrastructure, roads, sidewalks, utilities, water, sewer erosion control. And all of that requires the use of materials everything that we do at Hoopaugh Grading requires the use of aggregates. And so, I will tell you that having a source for those materials is absolutely critical to being able to achieve the goals, the growth goals of the county but having a local source of those materials is absolutely critical. Given the cost of transportation and how difficult it is to find those materials. I believe truly that having a local source of those materials is critical to being able to achieve the goals. We have had the pleasure of being able to partner with Luck on some projects and we have found them to be exactly what they've told you. They've been very transparent. They've been great partners. They've been very honest, very fair, and they are very committed to investing back into the communities in which they live and work. It is our belief that they will be great partners for this county that they will be great neighbors and they will be great ambassadors for the county. Thank you.

Jay Williams stated my wife and I live in 1652 Woods Road. Here in Chester. We own a cattle farm, and we are within probably a mile through the woods from this quarry. Now I am in favor of this quarry very much so. We get up in the morning. You set your feet on the floor, foundation of house, the stone made from a quarry from somewhere. Your driveway to get you to the road is made from a quarry. The road you drive to work, to school, to the grocery store are made from a quarry. So, you can do everything you touch in life, stone gets you there one way or the other. So, people need to realize how valuable this is to Chester County. The things that they have offered to do for Chester County are phenomenal like 15 acres, the business park, the schools, the agriculture property that they've set aside. These things all need to be considered very positive. Now we have a farm. I got two ponds, two wells that I dug and built. If the waters going to be drained. That's detriment to me. But I have sat down and voice these concerns with Luck Stone. Personally, one on one. And they always came back with an answer. That was positive and that they were not here to hurt anybody, that they were here to build a good reputation within the county and support the county. Now I've been in this county for 25 years, and I really worked hard for this county. I mean very hard at no pay. I've been in most of the houses and in the community,

we live in when people were in trouble. So, this is something that I feel like will help support this County. And I hope you'll consider that.

Debbie Parsons stated my name is Debbie Parsons and I live at 1051 Craigbrow Circle. Before I get into the remarks that I intended to make, I'd like to remind you as a country girl, that you all are the keepers of the barn door. And once those horses get out, it's awfully hard to round them back up and put them in their stable. So, keep that in mind as you hear the remarks that some of us have to make this evening. I am speaking to ask you to deny the zoning request being made by Luck Corp. You have previously heard our concerns regarding air quality water levels, especially in neighborhoods like ours and surrounding areas that have wells and septic systems. Noise levels which have been addressed to some part tonight. But we live where we do because we want to be in a quiet, peaceful neighborhood. Where we can enjoy outdoor activities. Lots of my neighbors walk through our neighborhood on a regular basis. And we don't want that to stop. We know there will also be increased traffic in our county, not necessarily on our secondary roads, but in our county. So, all of those concerns that we've always previously still exist. In addition, there are some other factors for your consideration. One there was a recent Fairfield County study that shows that property values decline, the closer you get to a quarry. So, keep that in mind. There is proof in an article that was researched to show that property values decline the closer they are to a quarry. Scientists from North Carolina particularly meteorologists have reported that in areas where there is high dust, maybe not even dust that you can see, you would still need to limit your time outdoors, because it would be dangerous for you to breathe that dust in what love would bring to our life would be a detriment to our air quality. The same meteorologists have also recently reported in North Carolina that a quarry blast resulted in activity strong enough to result in a recorded seismic activity. It was not an earthquake, but it was a blast from a quarry. Our county is poised to become a destination based upon natural resources. Tourists don't need to see or hear and unsightly quarry as they traveled to destinations looking for clean air and water. And most importantly our county strategic plan should be your guide and all decision-making regarding planning and zoning. Nowhere in that strategic plan, do I find a quarry mentioned. Do not allow all-expense paid trips to a demonstration that can be controlled by a company, cloud your judgment or your responsibility to follow the county strategic plan and to look out for the welfare of our citizens who are your neighbors. Thank you.

Don Foster stated he lives 1036 Craigbrow Circle. Luck Stone has been pretty busy in the last year and a half. They wrote checks to the school board. They've wrote checks to the Chester Chamber of Commerce. They come in her saying that they're answering questions. But if anybody from Craigbrow had a question, I'd go to Chamber of Commerce or the school board or go skeet shooting or go to a downtown develop to even see them. Ain't nobody in Craigbrow seen them since they pulled their permit. So that's bull. We have a constitutional right to be heard. Here we are, we're being heard. We have the constitutional right. Freedom of speech. Everybody said what they had to say. We had the constitutional right to own and bear arms. I don't say Chester County's confiscate nobody firearms. Who have the constitutional right to have religious liberties. I don't say Chester County shut down no church. Now if you will bear with me just a second. I want to read something to you. We the People of the United States in order to form a more perfect union, which that is the constitution United States, established justice to ensure domestic tranquility. Let's stop there. Because time restraint. I'll looked in the Webster dictionary and it says these three words, ensure domestic tranquility and ensure to make

certain domestic related to household, family, neighborhoods. Tranquility, free from agitation, free from disturbance, quiet, serene, peaceful, tranquil tranquility. That is our constitutional rights. And nobody in Chester County had the right to take our constitutional rights away from us, and they don't have the right to pick and choose what constitution that they can give the citizens of Chester County. And they sure don't have the right to put it up for sale for Luck Stone to buy. They bought the school board and Chamber of Commerce out. If they act like they do in Craigbrow a flavor about building a berm. They have to pile that dirt up somewhere. They're not here for dirt, they are here for rock and then they say they're going to plant grass on it and trees. They have to, that's erosion control. So, it's our constitutional right to live in peace and quiet. And not to be disturbed or agitated. I'm through.

Joyce Aragon stated my name is Joyce Aragon I live at 1579 Peden Bridge Road here in Chester. I was born in Chester County and have lived here on and off most all of my life. We my husband and I have a small farm that we ride horses and have pastureland here on Peden Bridge Road. We were at the last meeting at Gateway. And I know that y'all denied the permit. And I thought that was the end of it. And I thought you know this is a great thing that y'all just did. Because for 25 jobs. They're going to destroy hundreds of acres, hundreds, and hundreds of acres. And it's what everybody had wanted to rename gateway road, the gateway into Chester, and there's where all of the destruction is going to be. And I'm just really worried about the water table. I know that was a big issue, but we were down at the Gateway talking about it. My house is on a well and a septic tank. And I did read in the paper where it said that if what they were doing disturbs your water and you lose water. They will find some way to get you some more water. Now where are they going to get it from? Because Chester has got old iron pipe and stuff you know in the City of Chester, I'm way outside the City of Chester. I don't think there's any way they're going to be able to fill my well back up with water. It is definitely, they know that is going to lower the water table suing in all those millions of gallons of water that they're doing trying to keep the dust down. Like bought up farms and farmland. I've been trying to relocate from the road that I'm on to just a little smaller section and looking for a farm and I've been watching that old pile of Hollander piece of land there on Lancaster Road. My husband and I were riding down that road and there was a rezoning on it and I'm like why we backed up, pulled up in the driveway and Luck Stone bought it. And I just read something from Tim Scott on Facebook today and it's talking about Chester County and how we have lost people here in the county. And Luck Stone is not going to bring a big factory of jobs here. They're going to have 25 jobs. And I just don't know why that is enough to destroy all the property and upset all the people in Chester over that. You've already voted no to their rezoning. I expect that you would still vote no for it, and I don't know why they're still here. Thank you

Speaker Mr. Ervin declined to speak. Another citizen wanted to speak in their place. They didn't see the sign-up sheet before the meeting.

Vice Chairman Smith suggested to see Planning Director Mike Levister.

Planning Director Mike Levister asked County Attorney Joanie Winters if that was allowed.

County Attorney Joanie Winters stated that we can't yield time. There was a sign-up sheet out in the hallway for everyone. This is not a debate. It's a hearing. It's parliamentary procedure. Let's see how this goes. And if we're tracking on time, then we'll allow it but we'll only allow one person because we allow

you to do and then we have to open it up to anybody else who didn't sign up. So, do you see the issue? That's how public hearings work. You have to sign up to talk so we'll see how much time we have left. We're trying to stay on track so that y'all get home and have dinner or whatever else you need to do but y'all need to also have the opportunity to speak. We don't want to shut anybody down from speaking, but we do have rules. Okay, so we'll hold that in abeyance for right now if that's okay. Thank you.

Matt Pulling stated my name is Matt Pulling. I live at 133 Colony Drive. I'm the current plant manager at our Kershaw and Fairfield operations here in South Carolina. I've worked with Luck Stone for over 12 years now. In a few different operational roles throughout the company. And I know you guys have heard this over and over tonight. But I just wanted to reiterate that our mission is not around the product that we produce, but it is around making an impact on people. And it's not just the impact that we make on people inside of our gate, such as our customers or our associates. It's the impact that we make on our communities and neighborhoods where we live and where we work. So just wanted to go over a few things that we have done in the community since we've been here in South Carolina. There was a need to help with a workforce planning program that historic Camden was designing and putting on, so we leaned in to help donated some property and some tools to let them learn some new skills and trades that they could further their career paths. We've donated to the food banks in Kershaw County and Fairfield County. We partnered with United Way of Kershaw to help them finish a mobile Nutrition Center and mobile nutrition Van, which is now currently being used to deliver food out to the more rural areas of Kershaw County. When the tornado came through and destroyed, North Central High School, we helped donate some money so they could rebuild the school. So those are just a few of the things that we've done since we've been here in South Carolina and to make a positive impact. So just wanted to share those with you guys. Thank you.

Clyde Roberts stated my name is Clyde Roberts. I live at 105 Irwin Street Chester, South Carolina. I'm totally against this Luck rock quarry because I can't see where it's going to do any good for anybody. But not to mention this how close the schools are to this Luck rock quarry, but the accidents do happen. When you are involved in the operations you have, and I have something here from Rock Blasting exercise shows what's safe in light of recent violations. In less than a second 33,000 tons of rock is created from a pit that is created by Luck Stone. The demonstration comes a year after folks, after rock went flying and damage homes and cars and businesses in Sterling, I guess that's in Virginia. So, in January 2015, the Virginia Department of Mines, Minerals an entity has taken 17 complaints from quarries in Loudoun County and two of them have been in violation. We know accidents happen, you know, in neighborhoods. People going to get hurt. And they do happen. And so, another thing comes from Chantilly, Virginia, we watch the blast rocks from Bull Run Quarry in Loudoun. You can feel the foundation shake your house. Kind of rambled a little bit. It makes you uneasy as a homeowner which I can understand that, and I got one more little thing. So, day in and day out the trucks go to and from luck stone quarry on Belmont Ridge Road near Leesburg, Virginia. Trucks enter and exit the quarry about 600 times each weekday. According to officials that Luck Stone and the Belmont Green neighborhood residents say there's always a film of gray dust on houses and trees and trucks and the blasting and crushing of trap rock inside Luck Stones 500-acre plant. The residents think the dust is making them and their trees sick. They say that chronic bronchitis and asthma are common. Ear infections has skyrocketed. A dozen trees have died. We have people who suffer from respiratory things. Much of a 100-foot buffer of trees between them and the quarry has been cut down to make room for utilities. A

half dozen neighbors heard the complaints at a hearing before the Louden County Supervisor. We're not saying that the dust is totally Luck Stones. It's like the board is not thinking of environmental impact. So, they're you know that's the gateway to our town. It's you know, that's where any other industry, anybody going to come down that road, and they're going to see a rock quarry. And, you know, they're dynamite, and they've been here for dynamite. You know, if they're above their decibel level, we're going to hear that. So, it was something else there. Can I just make one more comment. Logging trucks, school buses. Busiest highway in Chester County.

Daniel Whiteman stated my name is Daniel Whiteman. I live at 608 Old Richburg Road. I'm Pastor of Orrs Baptist Church. I am directly across from where this environmental disaster is scheduled to be. I'm well aware of the dangers of this plan. I have worked as an environmental monitor in Kentucky and also some in Tennessee with some of my jobs there. I know what this does to people and the lungs. My daughter who was a high school runner, exercises right there where all the silica dust will be coming because it cannot be stopped in such a way as they may want to claim. This product might produce useful product, but it produces a byproduct that is dangerous and a carcinogen. Mr. Thompson when I met with him two years ago, told me that I believe there are going to be 10 to 12 employees only I see that numbers doubled now. That's a change or a change of statement there. But here's what I'd like to say. Mr. Thompson, you say that you're a goodwill company. If you are, I appreciate that. I'd like to tell you Welcome to South Carolina. Now take your business and go home.

Joanna Timms stated Hello, good evening. I am Joanna Timm's I reside at 1110 Dogwood Lane also in the Craigbrow community and before I start, I just want to say I personally am a person who believes in trusting people, but that trust needs to be earned and there has been nothing that Luck Stone has done to earn my trust. I've heard the commute about the community involvement. The only time I have seen them in the last two years was in the parade to wave at us. That's the first time I've seen you guys. So that just doesn't seem to add up. I have been a resident of Chester County for nearly excuse me, let me put my glasses on so I can see for nearly four decades and more than half of that has been in the Craigbrow community. My husband has retired from the Chester County wastewater recovery in 2018 and has nearly three decades of service to this county. He's currently the CEO of Timm's Environmental Consulting as well as the vice president of ETT Environmental. I own my own health and wellness business and I am also a mother of eight and grandmother of two. My family is very passionate about the environment and how it affects our health. I stand before you today to voice one or a few of the many concerns that is regarding this proposed quarry on behalf of myself and my community and my children and grandchildren as well. Luck's hydrogeological assessment suggests that water requirements for the quarry will be 100,000 gallons of water a day. This threatens not only the hundreds of wells nearby, which many of us fought to get in 2004 when our community well exploded, but also streams and lakes that support local wildlife and cattle. CMD and CWR are both privately owned, and they do not have any current plans to expand the water and sewer to our community leaving us 100% dependent on our wells for our clean water. There is no way that Luck Stone can guarantee there will be no contamination in the water table since they have to use equipment in the water table to get to the granite that is below it. Water sustains life. In addition to the water contamination concerns I have also spoken with a resident who purchased a home near a quarry. Sara states we had been living in our home for one week when I felt the first blast, I thought it was an earthquake. Our home has cracks in the drywall and on blasting days the air is filled with so much dust many homes are completely gray. The

truck traffic has destroyed our roads and our yards are full of potholes. I hope you reconsider for the sake of your community, Sarah Saldana. Lastly, I would like to ask that the imposed impact fees are for this proposal and is Chester County prepared to foot the bill for the damages caused to our wells, our roads, and our overall quality of life. I am publicly appealing to the planning commission today to deny all Luck requests in sections G through P two for rezoning and Chester County has nothing to gain for this, but much to lose.

Joan Hyde stated good evening, Joan Hyde 2440 Gill Jordan Road, Chester. My sources are the quarry mine case study in the Loudoun Times Virginia newspaper, The Chester News and Reporter, and the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration. Between the years 2013 And 2021, 30 inspections were done on Luck trucks in Virginia. And there were 26 violations and those violations included failure to secure load cargo, tires that were bald, or the ply showing, and there were accidents. In the last two years, Luck Stone in Virginia had four mine citations. Now because of the time, I can't go on to other plants. So, my focus was Virginia. In 2015, a truck driver died after he was buried beneath debris because Luck Stone failed to follow up from a 2012 inspection whereby recommendations were made, and they were not followed, or necessary actions taken. The failure to make sure proper safety inspections were completed for the US Department of Labor, Mine and Safety Health Administration. However, Mr. Kesterson, a Luck Stone employee you know when he said those accidents are far and few between. Tell that to the family of the man who died. Blasts have sent rocks into cars, homes, and businesses; management has failed to provide proper safety protocol. Blasting is to believe to cause dust, water pollution, traffic, and decrease property values between negative 4% to negative 39%. Excessive water uses per Luck even said this on a DHEC permit, thereby affecting the wells water table. There was a mine in Virginia that the neighbors someone referenced it earlier. There's the 750,000million-dollar homes. They were on kind of okay at first with the mine. But now Luck Stone wants to increase that mine and the people have now said that the traffic has increased. The buffers trees which were reiterated earlier were cut after the initial build. That there's great dust from the blasting in the crushing and they believe it's making them sick with chronic bronchitis as my ear infections, and the trees have died. The Chester effects close to home. The explosives on the site will be hauled by semis, this is per Luck Stone. The 400 to 500 feet quarry, that can never be filled if they decide to leave town in five years, two years. 10 years can't be filled. And only 20 jobs and damage to Rocky Creek. One of the largest Chester County creeks. Questionable tactics to get approved. Luck calls citizens who opposed this plan, naysayers. They said some people had nothing to do but to attend meetings. And those were people who are persisted with opposition. If approved. They want this Joint School program, which was mentioned tonight, and they would donate 15.8 acres to Chester County. Vote no, vote no to recommendation to the County Council. This is for our health, our safety, the roads, everything. Quarry no! If they want to maybe do some economic development in this county. Fine. We could maybe listen to that. But no quarry. Thank you.

Eileen Brown stated I'm Eileen Brown, I live at 1211 Dogwood Lane. And I just got a couple questions. I want to know why since he cannot do anything about the water and wells because Robbins Circle has every home. Could he not use city water? And if he can't use city water, is he willing to pay to have City water run to all the houses and I forget the name of the place, Craigbrow.

Vice Chairman Smith state that Mr. Thompson will have a rebuttal at the end to answer questions.

Patrick Young stated Good Evening now, my name is Patrick Young. I live at 1091 Craigbrow Circle. I've lived there for roughly 18 years. Like my neighbors I am concerned noise, dust, water, traffic, and all these issues. Luck Stone has made some effort looks like to try to correct some of these things. But I am still opposed to this, and I hope the commission is. One of my bigger concerns is the water. We went to one of the open houses that they had at the Gateway Center. Talk to one of the Luck Stone employees and they say well if it does affect your well, we'll bring you bottled water out there until you know you can get another well in and or you can tie into the municipal system. There is no municipal system even remotely close to Craigbrow. So, I see this is you know Luck Stone is not going to be a good fit for Chester. It is not worth the impact for 15 or 20 jobs for what is going to do to our community in our neighborhood. Thank you.

Joanna Ingle stated Thank you, I'm Joanna Ingle and I live at 2762 Blaney Road and Lewis Turnout. And here we go again. Five days before Christmas. I want to emphasize why the three parcels Luck Stone is seeking to have rezoned to ID-3 don't qualify for ID-3. I would like to call your attention to a critical point from the Chester County Zoning Ordinance adopted January of 2020 which says ID-3 districts are intended for heavy industrial manufacturing and processing uses in areas isolated from residential, rural, and agricultural districts. Now, the area that they wish to rezone to ID-3 is immediate proximity to more than 200 homes in three of the County's most stable and desirable neighborhoods. They are less than one mile from one of the largest Elementary School complexes in South Carolina. A public middle school, a private church school, the Chester campus of York Technical College, two churches, a public park, a golf course, and a very large cattle farm. Though those properties they wish to rezone are not isolated, they are not isolated, and they do not qualify for ID-3. Thank you.

Dan Huntsinger stated good evening my name is Dan Huntsinger and I reside at 918 Craigbrow Circle, Chester, South Carolina. My wife and I moved to Craigbrow Circle three years ago. And we moved from York County and the reason we did was we wanted quiet we wanted wonderful neighbors. We wanted room and we found it there. Our neighbors are wonderful. We've seen our real estate cost, real estate value go way up. We see new homes built in the area. We've seen a home in our neighborhood just about a year and a half ago when it for sale and there were eight bids the first day. That's happening in Chester County. Putting in a rock quarry in that is going to mess all that up. There's no doubt about that. As Debbie said, it's proven that property values go down. Two years ago, you folks rejected the request. The gentleman has come back today and made some adjustments. But keep in mind he says well subject to later zoning. He can go come back in two years and change everything. This is just any company that is detrimental to all the citizens doesn't have to do all the things that he mentioned today. They come in and they do business and everybody's happy. Nobody wants to rock quarry. You may know this, but our neighbors in Lancaster County just miles away. Last year, denied a rock quarry by a seven to nothing vote on the Zoning Commission, 7.0. You denied it last time. Why would that change? Because he makes a few changes that are subject that, he can change in a year or two. When you folks are gone, he can come back and say you know we're going to do this. The bottom line is he wants to dig holes. He wants to have a rock quarry and it's detrimental to our community. I was looking at his new proposals and one of them had to do with the water. They said, well if DHEC determines your well was messed up, how long does that take six months. What are we going to do for showers. How are we going to wash our clothes for six months? And then if they do determine that is what are they going to do? Bring a water

truck and park in your front yard. We are your neighbors? Would you all like that to happen to you? I don't think so. The bottom line please don't vote for this. I have two grown daughters and years ago I had a 12 o'clock curfew for them. And they said dad that we want to stay out we want to stay out, and I said honey, nothing good happens at 2am in the morning. Nothing good happens when you bring a rock quarry into your community. Please, please we're your neighbors. There are hundreds of us, for 25 jobs please say no like you did last time. No reason to change your mind. For a quote unquote a few little things that could go away in a year or two. Thank you very much.

Vice Chairman Smith stated that was the end of the list of folks that were signed up to speak but we do have time so we're going to allow one more speaker. The gentleman who was sitting over here, please come up to state your name and your address for the record. And there's a three-minute timer on it.

Trent Bagley stated I apologize; I did not see the list, and this is my first time being in here. My name is Trent Bagley. I'm here representing myself and my mom at 1076 Craigbrow Circle. And when luck had their first meeting, I don't think there was a bigger opponent than me. I was so anti it, I wouldn't visit Virginia. I was heavily concerned, and I believe my mom's property is the largest and closest to the project. That's in Craigbrow. Because of these concerns, I started to do research on how I could stop them without cost. I went through the creeks, and I looked for endangered species. I mean, you name it I did. Ironically, the research that now has me on their side. I've seen the way they make things look nice. I've seen their safety record when I went to the Kershaw plant, and I've seen their environmental and their community approach which is grown this time around. The truth of the matter is that another company that comes may not offer these things may not have the safety aspect. You're not going to get a list of qualifications from them. And they're given that to us. If you read through their zoning qualifications and conditions, I believe they have addressed the possible issues head on. And following my research. I initially started to back Luck for the simple fact that I felt like there would be a better neighbor of lesser of two evils if you would say. That change with the community outreach that they're making right now. The Nature Trail, if we can walk down the Nature Trail, and we're not having issues that's them putting confidence in their system in there, their ways. They've not been guarded with us. I've hounded the death out of them and DHEC, and it's my thought that the sciences from DHEC and the sciences, it's okay. The qualifications that they're putting with the permit are what makes it legally they have to abide by. So, if the science is wrong, per chance we still have that legal opportunity with the qualifications. It's for these reasons that we support Luck Stone zoning change. Thank you for your time and I appreciate that.

Vice Chairman Smith stated that's the end of the public comment section and now we will give Mr. Thompson a ten-minute rebuttal to the concerns.

Mr. Thompson stated Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Again, my name is Ben Thompson with Luck Companies. I've heard a lot of concerns and I wanted to point out how many of those are very directly addressed. One of the things the young lady in front row here, stress concerned about wells that came up several times. So wanted to kind of talk about the process and then the condition that's in front of you. So as a process, we had to do a hydro geologic study at the property, which understands how water moves in the ground. It also does pump tests to ensure the recharge rates of those wells. Those monitor wells stay in place. They're monitored for a year prior to operation so that you have a baseline and then those

are the first wells where identification of any concern would take place. That's a safety mechanism. On the concern point of is my well going to go dry. DHEC does not approve something if the science doesn't show that there's consistent competent rock there, and that the water body and aquifer are not impacted. So, if there is a complaint, a third party comes in. DHEC oversees it. It's the operator if found to be in fault, and this is standard language. We've also provided it to the county as condition. If there is deemed to be fought, then the operator is responsible for digging the new well or providing water to that person in some form or fashion. As a company practice, we also provide water while that investigation is ongoing. So, when individuals have heard well, we could extend local water lines to you. That's a comment that is a general umbrella. It's meant as an insurance policy. It's also an insurance policy for us. As we go through. The appearance question came up you can see the highway 9. I would also say that we have done line of sight studies from all adjoining properties to ensure that there's no visible insight into our operation. That does come with one exception. That exception is along the trail that we intend to build. There will be an overlook and if committed to build, there will be an overlook where people can see it. A big part of putting that trail in is so people can visibly see Rocky Creek. There was some stress concern about Rocky Creek. Rocky Creek is in a pretty bad shape right now. It's had a lot of cows in it for a lot of years. Not only on our on our property, but also upstream. There's pretty high E coli factor within there. And so, and I didn't stress this we also own a business that stream bed restoration management and so part of that is to make that a laboratory and a visible aspect where everyone in the community can see the change within. There were several comments to air quality. We have dust suppression on all of our sites. We also there was some allusions to cancerous product. We also in there is some reality to a competitive desk called silica which is a shaped material. We do testing on site that really is an operator concern or something that an operator can address his it's in very low ventilated areas. So, our site is open air. It also is not a concern in America from that standpoint. We also have a dust permit attached to that so part of when I say not only not only there's these state conditions, also putting them local. The difference there is if they're local, the local body doesn't have to look to DHEC, they can say you run afoul of your conditions and therefore we are pulling your permit. So that is part of further confidence and trying to put that forward. There were a couple articles or quaza articles that were tough to follow. We don't have an operation in Sterling, Virginia so don't think that was anything related to us. Again, it goes back to brand and how we show up. That's why we have been very open to anybody and everybody to contact us. We've put our phone numbers out there. We've offered everybody trips. That is something so there's visibility, and it's not just somebody standing at podium professing something. So, people can see it for themselves. Hear for themselves. know it to be true. In an addition to the words that you're hearing. The blasting component, there's a condition in there also, that we do pre blast surveys prior to any blasting occur. We don't use dynamite. The mechanisms are separated, so there's no possibility for ignition until it's digitally ignited. It's a millisecond event. Those that have seen it know that the rock simply just slumps down on the bench in front of it. It's not the dramatic Hollywood event that is in a lot of people's minds. That is on a frequency of about once every week and a half to two weeks. So, a millisecond event. It's done during the daytime we don't blast during lunch in the event that somebody comes to wants to go home to eat for lunch and all of a sudden didn't know this was going to happen. We also have call list, and we will call people and tell them Hey, this time tomorrow we're going to blast. Typically, what you see is the concern that was expressed a moment ago. Typically, what you see three or four years from now is that was a great group. Those concerns were unfounded, and it becomes much more comfortable. And I know that is upsetting for some to hear tonight. But that is the reality. We also have provided in the appendix to this

application, current date pictures of Rocky Creek. All what I'm trying to impress is that everything we're doing and talking about is very visible. We don't have anything to hide, which is why we offer those visits. We want people to meet us, we want people to engage with us. The idea that we haven't been present is kind of both sides. You know, it's they've been at all these events and doing all these things, but yet they're not talking to us. And when we've offered our phone numbers and things of that nature. I do not harbor any ill feelings about people expressing concern. I think that's natural. What I hope people recognize is that the people standing in front of you tonight. This isn't an attorney that's hired by the company. I worked for this company for a reason. I believe in this company. This is my job. And I do this job because of the people that I work with and how much they mean, and that know what we do in communities. See if there any other we you know, oh the question about the jobs have migrated upward and that is due to the market changing. So, the market is much more robust, there's a lot of energy and growth. And we see that as an opportunity to hire more individuals. I think that's probably about my 10 minutes. I'm glad to answer any additional questions.

Vice Chairman Smith asked if any of the Commissioners have any additional questions.

Commissioner Howell asked how much water that you use is recycled?

Mr. Thompson stated thank you for asking that. So, the gallons reference is part of a permit. So, as you're developing a site, we will need to pump water. So, which will be used for the equipment. So basically, dust control but upon the first step in developing a site is that you are also going in and building ponds. So, the water that we use within our site is recycled water. So, with stormwater, we manage that ultimately the site acts like a funnel and capture stormwater in the bottom. We pump that to multiple settling ponds. And from there it's incorporated back into our system, both for dust suppression, water trucks for roads, and to make clean stone product also. So, in then, the whole cycle continues. So, we are not pulling water consistently out of the ground. That is in the permit. Truck traffic is a bit of a misnomer about growing it. Reason being is that product is currently making its way into the county today. So, what we would be doing is displacing those trucks that are traveling from other counties and generating revenue for those other counties. But displacing those but doing so with primary road system. York County has two quarries and Lancaster County has two quarries and so this is the way to protect and keep your product local and support local.

County Attorney Joanie Winters stated for the record to Mr. Levister that when Mr. Thompson was finished with his rebuttal, he still had two minutes left. Which with the question and the explanation he did clock off the extra two minutes so that's why he spoke additionally. I just wanted that in the record.

Vice Chairman Smith stated any discussion.

Commissioner Howell stated Let's face it, everybody's houses got rock. Everybody's driveways got rock. The roads we drive on got rock, and it's being brought from somewhere else. The taxes are being paid in another county. The one cent sales tax is being paid in another county. Also, the two-cent sales tax that the county hits when taxes is charged to offset our cost of our taxes for the county for us to operate. So, no matter what we do the floor we're standing on got rock in it. The parking lot and we parked on got rock. The building the concrete columns here have rock. It's part of everyday life. I know some people

don't want it. But my question is Craigbrow closer to the plywood plant. Whatever it goes by now, and I had my job allowed me in the plants and some of the wood product plants were the some of the nastiest places I ever went, Boise Cascade, they use caustic chemicals they use is just a number of chemicals that are used in a plant that's just as close as to Florida and it runs 24/7, 365. So, you have to look at what did they lose when the plywood plant went in and what will they gain with the quarry. Cheaper stone for the county, taxes for the county, the schools. They're not asking for a reduction in taxes. fee in lieu of taxes. They're asking to be a community partner. So, I will support this. I know some people in here are not happy with that, but just the amount of tax money that would be generated by this product in the county will change lives. They should lower our county taxes. I grew up a mile from the quarry in Rock Hill. I bought a house a half a mile from the quarry in Rock Hill. I lived there eight years. I never knew it was there. I never knew it was there when I was growing up. So yes, I do know what it's like to live beside a quarry.

Vice Chairman Smith stated that this is not an open format here, this is a discussion between the Commissioners.

Commissioner Grant stated Mr. Chairman, I got one comment. I could see where that would be beneficial, is when they get really started in making gravel. The 901 parts that comes from Lowry's to Highway 9. Maybe they can go in and finally fix that road. Because there's a lot of gravel truck traffic on that road. That would be one benefit that I could see, cut down traffic from the Hanson quarry. And I understand there's another one going beside Hanson.

Commissioner Howell stated that yes, York County has approved another quarry in that area.

Vice Chairman Smith stated at this point are there any other comments and he will entertain a motion. Commission Howell motion to approve, second by Commissioner Grant. Vote 5-0 Approved.

- H. CCMA22-26 Luck Companies request a portion (1.82 acres) of Tax Map # 089-00-00-005-000 at 1207 Lancaster Hwy., Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to Restricted Industrial District (ID-1). Commissioner Grant motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell. Vote 5-0 Approved.
- I. CCMA22-27 Luck Companies request a portion (48.89 acres) of Tax Map # 089-00-008-000 at 1113 Lancaster Hwy., Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to Restricted Industrial District (ID-1). Vice Chairman motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell. Vote 5-0 Approved.
- J. <u>CCMA22-28</u> Luck Companies request a portion (17.92 acres) of Tax Map # 089-00-00-008-000 at 1113 Lancaster Hwy., Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General Commercial District (GC). <u>Vice Chairman motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell.</u> <u>Vote 5-0 Approved.</u>

- K. <u>CCMA22-29</u> Luck Companies request Tax Map # 088-00-00-054-000 off Mallard Creek Dr., Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Restricted Industrial District (ID-1) to Agricultural District (AG). <u>Vice</u> Chairman motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell. Vote 5-0 Approved.
- L. CCMA22-30 Luck Companies request a portion (174.46 acres) of Tax Map # 089-00-00-002-000 at 1421 Collie Lane, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General Industrial District (ID-3). Commissioner Howell motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Grant. Vote 5-0 Approved.
- M. <u>CCMA22-31</u> Luck Companies request a portion (19.35 acres) of Tax Map # 089-00-00-002-000 at 1421 Collie Lane, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to Restricted Industrial District (ID-1). <u>Commissioner Grant motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell</u>. Vote 5-0 Approved.
- N. <u>CCMA22-32</u> Luck Companies request Tax Map # 089-00-00-025-000 off Lancaster Hwy., Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General Industrial District (ID-3). Commissioner Howell motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Grant. Vote 5-0 Approved.
- O. <u>CCMA22-33</u> Luck Companies request a portion (9.35 acres) of Tax Map # 089-00-00-001-000 at 1295 Lancaster Hwy., Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to Restricted Industrial District (ID-1). <u>Vice Chairman Smith motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell.</u>

County Attorney Joanie Winters stated Mr. Chairman, if I may, I just want the commission to recognize that everyone that you're approving is also contingent on the conditions that are attached to the application that were presented by Luck. And they'll be required. It's almost like when you all do a reverter clause. If these conditions aren't met, then essentially would revert. So, these conditions are hard and fast. They're part of the application you're approving. I just want to make sure you all understand that.

Commissioner Howell stated that it's basically they've put their money where their mouth is and they don't if they don't do what they say, they lose what they asked for.

County Attorney Joanie Winters stated well, they've set the rules and y'all had an opportunity to read them. So, when you're approving the application, you're also approving those conditions.

- P. <u>CCMA22-34</u> Luck Companies request a portion (1.01 acres) of Tax Map # 089-00-001-000 at 1295 Lancaster Hwy., Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General Industrial District (ID-3). <u>Commissioner Howell motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Grant. Vote 5-0 Approved.</u>
- 5. Comments/Discussion

County Attorney Joanie Winters stated If I can just from a procedural standpoint, so this will, Mike. This will probably not get on the agenda for County Council Review until the second meeting of January. First meeting in January is typically just swearing in for county council. So, it'll be on the second meeting in January. This was the public hearing tonight. There will not be a public hearing at the three readings that county council goes through, and they will be the third Monday in January unless that's Martin Luther King Day. It's Tuesday. And so, it would be the third Tuesday of January. And then it would be the first and third Monday of February as long as they are not holidays and I think the third one might be but that's when county council will do the readings. It is not a public hearing. You'll have the public hearing tonight. But they will read them and either adopt the recommendation of the commission or deny the recommendation or come up with their own proposal that's the pleasure of counsel. So just so y'all know what the process is. This was the public hearing.

Vice Chairman Smith asked would they have an opportunity to speak in public session?

County Attorney Joanie Winters stated Yeah, I was going remind the general public there is a citizens comments section at every single council meeting. You do have to sign up in the hallway there is a signature of sign-up sheet looks like just like the one you sign up for tonight. You will have to do it prior to the beginning of the meeting. The meeting starts at six. So, if you want to speak, you'll have three minutes just like you did this evening. However, counsel will not engage with you. They'll listen, but they won't be able to answer questions or comment or anything like that. So again, some public hearing but there is another opportunity to be heard if you so choose. Okay, so just want to make sure everybody understands that we want to be fair and hear from everybody.

Commissioner Grant asked Planning Director Mike Levister if there was a meeting in January.

County Attorney Joanie Winters also stated that's where they will elect a chairman.

Vice Chairman Smith asked how it would work for those of them that are up for re-appointing.

Planning Director Mike Levister answered both questions with a yes to Commission Grant and County Attorney Joanie Winters questions and advised that County Attorney Joanie Winters could explain to Vice Chairman Smith question.

County Attorney Joanie Winters answered the new council members will have an opportunity to either reappoint or newly appoint. And so, we don't know what that looks like right now.

6. Adjourn Commissioner Grant motioned to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Howell. Vote 5-0 to adjourn. Time 8:42 PM.

Notice of Meeting: Public Notices providing time, date, and place for this meeting were posted in the Chester County Government Complex, Chester County Court House, and published in the November 30, 2022, Chester News & Reporter. All properties were also posted.